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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Ascent Hotels Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Ascent Hotels Private Limited (the “Company” which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Ses Note 24 to the financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company is principally engaged in the | Our audit procedures included:
business of owning hotels. its revenue
comprises hotel revenue (including room
revenue, food and beverage revenue and
revenue from recreation and other services)
and space rental revenue, * Tested the Company's revenue recognition
accounting policies are consistent with the

* Tested the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the key controls over
revenue recegnition process.

The accounting policies for different revenue
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Ascent Hotels Private Limited

streams are set outin Note 2.11 to the financial applicable accounting standards.

Fiatements. *  Using statistical sampling basis, tested the

revenue transactions recorded during the ysar
(including year-end cut off testing) with the
underlying documents such as invoices, hank
collections and other relevant documents, as

Revenue is a key performance indicator of the
Company and there is risk of overstatement of
revenue due to fraud resulting from pressure to
achieve targets and earnings expectations.

applicable.
Considering the above, we have identified | « Tested the journal entries relating to revenue
revenue recognition as a key audit matter. recognised during the year based on specified
risk-based criteria, to identify unusual or
irregular items.

* Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures relating
to the revenue recognition made in the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsihilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and compieteness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Ascent Hotels Private Limited

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or eror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovenide of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal controi reievant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating sffectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material unceriainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. Howsver, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independencs, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current pericd and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the following:

- the back-up of an accounting softwares used for maintaining records of room revenus and food
and beverage revenue which form part of the ‘books of account and other relevant books and
papers in electronic mode’ has not been kept on servers physically located in India on a daily
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Ascent Hotels Private Limited

basis;

the back-up of an accounting software used for maintaining general ledger and procurement to
pay records which forms part of the ‘books of account and other relevant books and papers in
electronic mode’ has not been kept on servers physically located in India on a daily basis during
1 April 2024 to 12 November 2024,

in the absence of independent auditor's report in relation to controls at the service organisation
used by the Company for its payroll process, we are unable to comment an whether the backup
of books of accounts and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode relevant to the said
process was maintained on the servers physically located in India on a daily basis; and

the matters stated in the paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g} of the Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agresment with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 01 April 2025 and
10 April 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The qualifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2(A)(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b} of the Act and
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.
b.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term cantracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses,

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 42(v} to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly iend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™ or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iy The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 42(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Ascent Hotels Private Limited

of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii} above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f.

Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below,
the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which have a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares:

@i} In the absence of sufficient and appropriate reporting on compliance with the audit trail
requirements in the independent auditor’s report of service organisation available for part of the
year and in the absence of the independent auditor's report of service organisation for the balance
period, for accounting software used for maintaining the books of account relating to food and
beverage revenue process, which is operated by third-party software service provider, we are
unable to comment whether audit trail feature for the said software was enabled and operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions, recorded in the software.

(i In the absence of an independent auditor's report in relation to controls at a service
organisation for an accounting software used for maintaining the books of account relating to
payroll process, which is operated by a third party software service provider, we are unable to
comment whether audit trail feature for the said software was enabled and operated for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software.

(i) The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled for the accounting
software used for maintaining the books of account relating to general ledger.

(iv) The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level to
fog any direct data changes for the accounting software used for maintaining the books of account
relating to revenue process for the period from 01 April 2024 to 07 October 2024,

(v} The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level to
log any direct data changes for the accounting software used for maintaining the books of account
related to general ledger at hotel and procurement to pay process.

Further, for the accounting softwares for which audit trail feature is enabled and operated
effectively, we did not come across any instance of audit frail feature being tampered with during
the course of our audit. Additionally, where the audit trail was enabled or operating effectively,
the same has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention except in the case of accounting software used for maintaining the books of account
relating to general ledger at hotel and procurement to pay process.

e
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the informaticn and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197{16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon
by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

2

Shweta Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 28 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25509822BMXIBD6483
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

{i ()

(©

(d)

(e

(OXCY

(b)

(i)

{iv)

v

{vi)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
ofits Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in every three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (@) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as
followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification
between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of
each class of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from bank on the basis of security of current assets.
As informed to us and as per the terms of sanction letter of such limits, there is no requirement
on the Company to submit quarterly returns or statements with such bank.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3fiii)(a) to 3({iii}{f} of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financlal Statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(vii) (a)

(b

(Vi)

(ix) (a)

provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, and Sales tax
during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goads
and Services Tax, Value Added Tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-Tax
or Cess or other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the
appropriate authorities.

As informed to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Value Added Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax or
Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for 3 period of more than six
months from the date they became payable, except as mentioned below:

Name of the Nature of | Amount | Periodto | Due date | Date of payment

statute the dues {INRin | which the
million) amount
relates
The Employees' | Provident 0.31 March 15 April Not yet paid
Provident Funds fund 2019 2019
And {Additiona
Miscellaneous | liability
Provisions  Act, due to
1952 Supreme
Court
Judgeme
nt)
Central Goods | Interest 1.05 July 2017 | Various Not yet paid
and Services Tax | liability on to August Dates
Act, 2017 and GST 2022

State Goods and | reversal
Services Tax Act,
2017

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other
statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

&

_—
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(b

(c}

(d)

(e)

®

(x) (8)

b

(i} (a)

(b)

{c)

{xii}

(xiii)

{xiv) (a)

As at 31 March 2025, the Company also has interest free loan amounting to INR 3,511.86
millions from SAMHI Hotels Limited ("Holding Company"), repayable at the option of the
Company and accordingly classified as "Other equity”. As this loan is repayable at the option of
the Company, there has been no default in repayment thereof.,

Further, as at 31 March 2025, the Company also has interest free loan amounting to INR 30.00
millions from SAMHI Hotels Limited ("Holding Company”), repayable on demand and
accordingly classified as "current borrowings". As the aforesaid loan has not been recalled by
the Holding Company, there has been no default in repayment thereof.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that the Company has used funds raised on short-
term basis aggregating to INR 114.78 millions for long-term purposes.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act} during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix){e} is not
applicable.

The Company does not bold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix){f) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of a public limited company and accordingly the
requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(b)

(xv)

(uvi} (a)

(b}

(©)

{d)

(evii)

(cvii)

(xix)

(xx)

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3({xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Qrder is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi}{d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. However, the Company
has incurred cash losses of INR 138.95 millions in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx}a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

e

Shweta Kumar
Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508822
Date: 28 May 2025 ICAl UDIN:25509822BMXIBD6483
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

{Referred to in paragraph 2(A}g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ascent Hotels
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate intenal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controis were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note™).

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures te obtfain audit evidence about the adequacy of the interna!
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or eror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s intermal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being mads only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.;101248WW-100022

o

Shw;ta Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 28 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25509822BMXIBD6483
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Ascent Hotels Private Limired

CIN 55101 MH2005PTC I 34475

Balance Sheet a5 at 31 March 2025

(A amouwnts in Rupees Million, wrless otherwise staved}

Asat As at
MNote 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Nom—curreat assels
Property, plant and cquipment 3 2,607 54 274677
Capital work-in-progress 3 89.00 65 48
Orher Intangible atsris 4 104 131
Financial ascets
Other Gnancial assets 5 1247 T756
Defermed v assets (st} T - -
Oxther tax assets [ 3035 2248
Other non-curmenl assts 8 745 14 42
Total »on-curvemt assets 2,507.85 292942
Current assets
Inventories 9 1332 1092
Financial assats
Trads reccivablos 10 106 14 T5.80
Cash and cash equivalents 114 14.4¢ 46,44
Ohhier financial assets 12 8359 2392
Other current assels 13 6042 28 46
Toted carrest assets 202.87 190.54
TOATAL ASSETS 3.010.72 3.119.96
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Gquity share capital 14 127801 127301
Other oquity 15 (586.53) (101 88)
Total equity 69148 L,176.13
Liabilities
Nea-curreat Kabdities
Financial lighilities
Borrowings 16 1.856.63 1,363.23
Provisions L7 4133 4.06
Other non-cument kabiliges 1% 108 34 11916
Total non- current Lisbilaies 1,969.30 1,486,495
Currest Gabilities
Financial liabiities
Bomowings 19 12878 1275
Trade pavables 20
- total outstanding dues of micro enterpriscs and small emerprisos 943 2823
- total ing ducs of creditors other than priscs and small pri 9637 32637
Other financial liahilies 2t kAR 2073
Othicr curront Liabiliies 22 7349 6647
Provisions 3 288 281
Total current lishilities EXL X 457.38
Tatsl Kabilities 131924 1,943.83
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,010, 72 3,119.96
The: Rotos from Note 1to New 43 farm an inicgral pan of these financial statements
As per our report of even date ahached
For BSR& Co. LLP For and on bohalfof of Dircctars of
Charrered Accountants Aspent Hotels PrivatgALimited

ICAL Firm Registration No . 101248W/W-1 00022 r

o5 " lpasMe s

#Shwets Kumar [ Rajat Mehra Tanya Chakraverty Iram Noaz Anasd
Pariner Direcror {Hrectior Company Sccretary
Membership Mo - 500822 DIN: 06813081 DIM: 08339291 Membership Mo ; A43735
Place; Gurogram Plage: Gomgrum Place; Gorugram Place: Gurugram

Daie: 28 Mar 2023 Dasc. 28 Mar 2023 Date: 28 Mar 2023 Date: 28 Mar 2023



Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS101 MH2005PTC154475

Statement of Profit and Loas for the year ended 31 March 2025
{AH amounts i Rupees Mitlion, unless otherwise siated)

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed
Employee benefits expense
Other expenses

Earnings before finance cost, depreciation, amortisation and tax

Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization sxpense

Profit/{loas) before tax

Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax

Profiti{loas) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Ttems s will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss

-R loss on defined bemefit obligations
-1 tax relating 1 items joned above
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of fax

Total comprehensive profiti({loss) for the year

Earnings/(loss) per equity share (Face value of INR 10 each):
Basic (INF)
Diduted (INR)

The notes from Mote 1 1o Note 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date aitached

ForBSR& Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Mo - 101248WW- 100022

o=

Shweta Kumar
Fartner
Membership No.: 509822

Place: Gurugram
Date: 23 Mar 2025

For the year ended For the year ended
Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
24 1,400.48 1,184.96
25 14.91 7.28
1.4153% 1.192.24
26 164.16 [39.31
x 177.07 [51.55
30 58349 60724
924.72 398.10
FHLGT 20414
28 205,138 4499
29 175.33 175.38
I50.50 625.32
110.17 {331.18)
7
11017 {331.18)
27 (022) (023}
{0.22) 0.23)
109,95 {331.41)
31
0.86 (1.59)
.86 (2.59)
For and on behalf of Board of Direstors of
Ascent Hotels Private Limited 2

/WW

— Rajat Méhra
Lhirect,
DIN: 0683081

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 Mar 2025

nya Chakravarty
Direcior
DIN: 08539291

Place: Gunrgram
Date: 28 Mar 2025

Naaz Anand

Company Secretary
Membership Mo : A43735

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 Mar 2025



Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS10t MH2Z005PTC154475

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Alf amorrtts in Rupees Miflion, unless otherwise stated)

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax
Ad justments:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back
Loss allowance for trade receivables
Finance costs
Interest income
Unrealised lass on foreign exchange fluctuation (net}
Operating cash flows before working capital changes
Increase in inventories
Increase ip trade receivables
[ncrease other financial assets
Increase in other assets
(Decrease) increase in trade payables
Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities
[ncrease in provisions
Increase in other financial liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes (paid) refunded {including interest) - net
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flows from ixvesting activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets (including capital work-in-progress}
Bank deposits matered
Bank deposits made
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayment of long-termn borrowings
Proceeds of current borrowings from bank (net)
Proceeds of current borrowings from Holding Company
Repayment of current borrowings to Holding Company
Equity component of interest free loan received from holding company
Equity component of interest free loan repaid to holding company
Finance costs paid

Net cash nsed in from financing activities (C )

Net decrease in ¢asb and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes to statement of cash flows
i. Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
IN CUrTent account

-

For the year conded For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
110.17 (331.1%)
17533 17538
{794) (1.621
1.5% -
20518 44994
(3.77} (3.94)
1.83 322
48038 291.80
(2.40) {1.80)
(31.92) (2237
{0.99) (7.03)
(25.64) (5.01%
(245.46) 12891
1242 (18.24)
012 099
£.26 0.19
192.37 367.44
(6.79) 1.20
185.58 368.64
(50.91) (32.38)
3008 31842
(4.70) (335.71)
572 291
{19.81) {471.26)
47975 1,275.21
(17.55) (3.634.78)
67.35 -
70.00 433.50
(40.00) -
= 271501
(594.60) (444.70)
(162.76) (688.02)
(197.81) (343.78)
(32.04) (22.40)
4644 68,84
14.40 46.44
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
0.20 0.80
14.20 45,64
14.40 46,44




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101MH2005PTC154475

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stoved)

§i. Movement in finaucial Liabilities - Borrowings including accrued interest and unamortised premium on optionally convertible redeemable debentures

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Opening Balance 1.506.27 5,183.17
Changes from financing cash flows
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 479.75 1,708.71
Repayment of non-current borrowings from bank (17.53) {3,634.78)
Proceads of current borrowings (net) 67.35 -
Proceeds of current borrowings from Holding Company 70.00 -
Repayment of current borrowings to Holding Company (40.00) -
Finance cost paid (162.76) (688.02)
Other non cash changes
Finance cost expense 20238 458.09
Modification of financial liability made during the year - (1,520.90)
Closing Balance 2,105.44 1,506.27

iil. The cash flows from operating activities section in Statement of Cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the "Indirect Method” as set out in the Ind AS 7

"Statement of Cash Flows"

The notes from Note 1 to Note 43 form an integral part of these financial statements,
As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Ascent Hotels Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 131248 W/W-100022

/‘
Shweta Kumar jat Wichra Tanya Chakravarty
Partner ‘Director Director
Membership No.: 509822 DIN: 06813081 DIN: 08539291
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 28 Mar 2025 Date: 28 Mar 2025 Date: 28 Mar 2025

Iram Nasz Anand
Compary Secretary
Membership No.: A43735

Place: Gurugram
Date; 28 Mar 2025



Ascent Hotely Private Limited

CIN USSLOEMII00SPT CI50075

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amonmts in Rupeer Million, aaless aiemnse atated)

o Exuity share capital

Particulars Number Amount
Az ot 0 April 1023 117801 486 127800
Chonges in guity sharc capital dunng e wear - 3
At at 3t March 2024 178,51 456 L2TEH
Changes i exquMy share capiial durng the wear . -
Ay 8l 31 Murch 2025 12.70.01.466 LIM01L
——
b, Other anuity {refer mote IS)
Particulars
Reserves and surphuy Equity aFinierest free
Eoans from Eolding Company Total
Secorilies prembum Rrtained sarmings M‘:T;:r“: &m (Refer maie 15;
Balance a1 at 01 April 2023 1AL 85 [T %) - IS (3,56 L.64)|
s for tho e - (23118 . - (331,19
Otther comprohensive o (et of tx) - - 10 23 - 10,23y
Tatal comprehensive income A (3L.18) (0.23) . @14
| Addition dunng the vear - - - = -
Transfirrad to retmped canmings - (0 23)] o - -
Mudification of financial liablsty made during the vear (refir e 15) 152090 1520.90
(l-oan rocerval from Hulding Coepany 2501 LHEm
Losn repaid to Holding C 3 {44 1) (T
[RY T {5,25T.1%) = 1,106.46 (141.39)
- 117 - . oz
chenaive Jorss fnct of 1y - - 1022y 0 23)]
Total comprehemive loss = 11T m.22) 14335
Aabditpon duning the vear - . - . .
Framsforred to retpinad camngs = (0 22y 022 -
Loan repaid 1o Holding Compary . . 1394 &0 1504 6
[ml-m as at 31 March 125 LA BS [ﬁ.ll?.!.l_u - REI{E Y (SN.SJI!

The netes from Mote | 1o Mote 43 foom an wivgral part of hese (inananl stakanemis
As per our epon of cven dots aiached
For ESR & Co LLP

Chartered Heconmanis
ICAT Firm Registration No - 101 248%W W . 100022

g

Aseend Hotels Privaia Limited

For ond oo behallNof Board of Directors of

d

Shwels Kowar Mitira Tadya Chakravarty
Parper Ihrectoy Dhrector
Membarship Mo : 509822 DIN: 0631 3081 DA 0853979)
Place. Gurugrum Place: Gurugrom Place: Gunygram
Diate: 28 Mar 2025 Duale: 28 Mar 2025 Dake: 23 Mor 2025

Y /4

Tram Masz Anand
Company Suiory
Morbarship Mo A43Y735

Place: Gurugrem
Diaie; 28 Mor 2025



Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Corporate information

Ascent Hotels Private Limited {‘the Company’) is a company domiciled in India. The Company was
incorporated in India on 05 July 2005 as per the provisions of Indian Companies Act and is limited by
shares. The registered office of the Company is at B -7, Om Parshwanath Apartments, Desai and Sheth
Nagar, Sai Baba Nagar, B, orivali{ W), Mumbai City, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400092 and the
corporate office of the Company is situated at 14th Floor, Building 10 C, Cyber City, Phase-II, Gurugram,
Haryana, India, 122002,

The Company is principally engaged in the business of owning internationally branded hotels across key
cities in the Indian sub-continent. Presently, the Company has one hotel under it (Hyatt Regency, Pune)
which is operational.

1.2 Basis of preparation

A. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS} as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, (the *Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Company’s
Board of Directors on 28 May 2025,

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 2.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for the following
items, which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date;

Items Measurement Basis
Financial assets and liabilities i.e., Fair Value
derivative instruments

D. Critical estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that affect the
application of Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is;

Provisions and contingencies
The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance

with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, which involves key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

ify Useful lives and impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in

progress, right to use assets and other intangible assets

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in
progress, right to use assets and other intangible assets are based on estimates and assumptions
regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash flows, obsolescence, demand, competition
and known technological advances. The Company reviews the useful lives and recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment, capital work-in progress, right to use assets and other intangible assets
at the end of each reporting date.

iii) Employee benefit obligations

v)

Employee benefit obligations (gratuity and compensated absences) are determined using actuarial
valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, salary growth rate and mortality rates.
Due to the compilexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices
in active markets are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment
is required in establishing fair values.

Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Also, refer
Note 35 for further disclosures.

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which carried forward tax losses can be used. A deferred tax
asset is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
prebable that the related tax benefit will be realized.




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

vi) Critical judgements in determining the discount rate:

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being
evaluated or for the portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

E. Current and non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
or cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for determining
current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

F. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control
framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility
for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly
to the Holding Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from
the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

s Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair

value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 35.




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(4l amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.

Material accounting policies

1) Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any.

Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital
work-in-progress,

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing
costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment,

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value
only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair
and maintenance expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the
management based on technical estimates). The assets® residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from/ (up to) the date on which
the asset is ready for use/ (disposed off).




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

2)

3)

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of assets is as follows:

Asset Category* Management estimate of |Useful life as per Schedule I
Useful Life to the Companies Act, 2013

Building 15-60 years 60 years
Computers and accessories 3-6 years 3-6 years
Plant and machinery 5-20 years 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-8 years 10 vears
Vehicles 8 years 8 years

Office equipment 5 years 5 years

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, has determined
that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use
these assets. Hence, the useful lives of few assets included in the above asset categories are different
from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment’s are
reviewed by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the
specific asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

Intangible assets of the Company represents computer software and are amortized using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful life (at present three to ten years), The amortization period and
the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of
the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed
accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

A

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that
are attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost

- Debt investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

- Equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
~ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and
~— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measure at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
asat FVTPL:
— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give tise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
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maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

~  how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

—  the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features;
- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

Financial assets: Subseguent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
assets at including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
at amortised cost | effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income

at FVOCT under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.
Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
investments recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
at FVOCI a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses

are recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to profit or loss.
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ii.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition, Financial labilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise compulsorily convertible debentures
denominated in INR that can be converted to equity shares at the option of the holder, when the number
of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised at the fair value of a
similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is initially
recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and
the fair value of the liability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.
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Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, The equity component of a2 compound
financial instrument is not remeasured subsequently.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss (unless it qualifies for inclusion in
the cost of an asset). In case of conversion at maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and
no gain or loss is recognised.

Interest free loans

The Company has obtained interest free loan from its holding company. Such interest free loans are
measured at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash
flows and discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such
loans. The difference between the transaction price and the fair value of such loans have been recognised
as equity component in the books of the Company. The loan component is subsequently measured at
amortised costs and interest expense is recognised using effective interest rate method. On modification
in the terms of such loans wherein they became repayable at the option of the borrower resulting in it
becoming perpetual debt such loans including accrued interest up to the date of modification have been
treated as other equity.

Modification of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets:

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the
contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this
case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company
recalculates the gross cartying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a medification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. [n this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Optionally convertible redeemable debentures

All financial liabilites are initially recognised at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is generally its
transaction price (that is, the fair value of the consideration given ot received). However, if there is a
difference between the transaction price and the fair value of financial instruments whose fair value is
based on a quoted price in an active market or a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
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markets, the Group recognizes the difference as a gain or loss at inception (“day 1 gain or loss®). In all
other cases, the entire day | gain or loss is deferred and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
over the life of the transaction until the transaction matures or is closed out.

Impairment

Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost,

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

-significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

-the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for
the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses
debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expecied credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CiN US5101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCI.
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

B. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated firture cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit (CGU)).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated, if any to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU
(or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for
which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting
date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
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is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such
a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise stock of food and beverages is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventory to their present location and condition. In determining the cost, first in first out ("FIFO")
method is used. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to make the sale.

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.
Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i)
the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii} the grant/subsidy will be
received.

Provisions (other than employee benefits)

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance
cost. Provisions are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
curtent best estimates at each reporting date.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, or 2 present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by
the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition and/or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
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is suspended in the period during which active development is delayed due to interruption, other than
temporary interruption. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

10) Employee benefits
(a) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified
as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-
gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee
services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

(b) Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Employee state insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employee
state insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution
already paid is less than the contribution payable under the scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date, the deficit payable under the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determtining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market
yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to
the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income
and are never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past
service cost.
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(¢) Other long-term employee benefit obligations — Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize
it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The
Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

11) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for services that the
Company has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the
passage of time.

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required to do invoicing,
the same is presented as Unbilled revenue.

A contract liability is recognized if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services and the Company is under
an obligation to provide only the goods or services under the contract. Contract liabilities are recognized
as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Room revenue, sale of food and beverages and other services

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recreation and other services (including banquet
and allied services) relating to hotel operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services
and sale of food and beverages which is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages
are sold and other services have been provided as per the contract with the customer.

Space rental

Space rental income comprise amount earned for use of hotel premises space by other parties. The
income is recognised when services are rendered as per the terms of the contract and no significant
uncertainty exists regarding collection of consideration.
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12) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to recejve
payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The “effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

» the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
» the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If
the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

13) Foreign currency translation
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit
or loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or
loss on a net basis,

14} Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination, or item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects
uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.
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Deferred tax is not recognised for

« temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that:
- is not a business combination; and
- at the time of transaction (i) affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and
(ii} does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

» temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to
the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

» taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary
differences. If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognize a deferred tax asset
in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered,
based on the business plans for individual subsidiaries in the Company. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves,

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised

or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets and they relate to income tax levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

15) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may eams revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Company’s other components and for which discrete financial information is available.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). In accordance with Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”, the
operating segments used to present segment information are identified on the basis of information
reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance.

16} Earnings per share

Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
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adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the resuits would be anti -
dilutive.

17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,
deposits with an original maturity of three months or Jess, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

19) Measurement of earnings before finance cost, depreciation and amortisation, exceptional items
and tax (EBITDA)

The Company has elected to present earnings before finance cost, depreciation and amortisation,
exceptional items and tax (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the face of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In the
measurement, the Company does not include finance costs, depreciation and amortisation expense,
exceptional items and tax expense.

20) Exceptional items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the
ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the
performance of the Company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and
accordingly, disclosed in the financial statements.

21) Leases: Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, had issued Ind
AS 116 “Leases” which replaced the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 and other interpretations. Ind
AS 116 sets out the principles, for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
forboth lessors and lessees. It introduces a single, on- balance sheet leases accounting model for leases.

Company as a Lessee

On inception of a contract, the Company (as a lessee) assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract is
or contains a lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the [ease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and
a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases} and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates payments
in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices and
applies the lease accounting model only to lease components.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, any asset restoration obligation, and less any lease incentives received. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are also
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased assets or renewal of the leases at the end of the lease term, recognised right-of-
use assets are depreciated to a residual value over the shorter of their estimated useful life or lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed” payments) and
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. In-
substance fixed’ payments are payments that may, in form, contain variability but that, in substance,
are unavoidabie. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise and excludes the effect of early termination options where the Company is not reasonably
certain that it will exercise the option. Minimum lease payments include the cost of a purchase option
if the Company is reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset after the lease term.

Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option and
any lease modification.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable leases
which guarantee a minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the guaranteed amount is considered
to be an “in-substance fixed’ lease payment and included in the initial calculation of the lease liability.
Payments which are *in-substance fixed” are charged against the lease liability.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

Company as a Lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a
finance lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a
straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the
lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net investment
in the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease
and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue
from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

22) Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and
liabilities.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)

5 Noa-current financial assets - Others
(Unsecured, considered good)

Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months from the reparting date)* #
Security deposits
Less: interest accrued on security deposits

* including interest accrued on fixed deposits INR 0.44 (31 March 2024 - [NR 1.36)
# includes deposits under licn amounting to INR 55.24 (31 March 2024 - INR 60.62)

6  Other tax assets

Tax deducted at source

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
55.68 61.98
16.79 16.12
- {0.54)
72.47 71.56
As at As at

31 March 2025

30.35

31 March 2024

22.48

22.48
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Notes to the Minancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
fAll amounis in Rupees Million, wnless otherwise stated)

7

Income tax For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A: The major components of income tax expense are
Recognised in profit or Joss
Current tax B
Deferred tax - _
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate {tax expense and the acconnting profit multiplied by Company’s domestic tax rate)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Percentage Amount Percentage Amount
Loss before tax 11017 (331.18)
Tax using the Comparny’s domestic 1ax rate 2517 2173 2517 (83.36)
Effect of:
Non recognition of deferred 1axes on temporary differences {59.33 (65.37) (34.7%) 115.09
Mon-deductible expenses 0.67 074 - -
Others 32.89 3624 9.58 (3L.73)
Effective tax rate = - - -
The Company has adopted new tax regime under section [15BAA of the [ncome tax Act, 1961 wef FY 201920,
C. Deferred tax assets / ligbilities
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed business loss and depreciation 1,37821 1,464.90
Loss allowance for doubtful debts 234 244
Provision for employee benefits 265 2.56

1,383.20 1,469.90
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment, Capital work-in-progress and Intangible assets 357.13 36797
Optionally convertible redeemable debentures (OCRDs) 541 15.90

362.54 383.87

Net deferred tax asset 1,020.66 1,086.03
Deferred tax asset not recognised* 1,020.66 1,086.03

Deferred tax asset recognised

*As at year end, the Company has significant unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward business losses as per [ncome Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax assets have not been
recagnised, because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which entity can use the benefit therefrom
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CIN US5101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Al amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise siated)

D. Movement in temporary differences
31 March 2025

Balance as at Deferred tax Balance as at
M April 2024 differences 31 March 2025
Particolars generated but not
recognised during
the year
Deferred tax asseis
Unabsorbed business loss and depreciation 1,464.90 (36.69) 137821
Loss allowance for doubtful debts 244 {0.10) 2.34
Provision for employee benefits 2.56 0.09 265
Orthers = - =
1.469.90 (86.70) 1,383.20
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment, Capital work-in-progress and Intangible assets (367.97) 10.84 {357.13)
Optionally convertible redeemable debentures (OCRDs) (15.90) 10.49 (5.41)
{3183.87) 21.33 (362.54)
Net deferred tax asset 1.086.03 {65.37) 1,020.66
31 March 2024
Batance as at Deferred tax Balance as at 31
01 April 2023 dilferences March 2024
Particulars generated but not
recognised during
the year
Deferred bax assets
Unabsorbed business doss and depreciation 1,252.76 212.14 1.464.90
Loss allowance for doubtful debts 258 (0.14) 244
Disallowance u/s 43B of Income-tax Act, 1961 107.80 (107.80) -
Provision for employes benefits 219 0.36 2.56
Others 1.23 (1.23) -
1.366.55 103.33 1,469.90
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment, Capital work-in-progress and Intangible assets (375.82) 7.85 {367.97)
Optionally convertible redeemable debentures { OCRDs) f19.81) 391 {15.90)
{395.63) 11.76 (383.87)
Net deferred tax asset 970.92 115.09 1,086.03
E. Tax loss carried forward
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised with expiry date as follows
As At
31 March 2025
Amovnt Expiry Date
{Financial Year)
Business loss 42524 2031-32
Business loss 51296 2030-31
Business loss 75920 202030
Business loss 214.05 2028-29
Unabsorbed depreciation 356418 Never expire
As at
31 March 2024
Amount Expiry Date
{Financial Year)
Business loss 56767 2031-32
Business loss 51295 2030-31
Business loss 759.20 202030
Business loss 32821 2028-29
Busingss loss 458 2026-27
Business loss 83.70 2025-26
Unabsorbed depreciation 3,564.18 Never expirg
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(A amounts in Rupees Miflion. wnless otharwise stated)

] Other non-current assets Az al At
{Unsecvred. comsidered good) 31 March 2025 31 March 2034
Advances atber iban capital edvances
Prepaid axpinses .85 LR
Capilal sdvanecs 560 623

TAT 1442

9 laveniorica Ag st Asar

fomlwed af the fower of cost and nei reafisable vaine) 31 March 2825 31 March 2024
g 1202 1292
13.32 .92

Carrying amawnt of imentarics pledged as security for labiliics INR 13 32 (31 March 2024 - [MR 1092}

10 Currend finandal asseis - Trade reocivables At Asal
{Unsecured) 31 March 2028 31 Mareh 2024
Trade mecivables
-Considerod good P08 BT
~Credit impaired 42 478
Unbilled revenne *
~Considered good 109 20 53

11749 BS.A%
Legs allowance {11269 {9 68Y
196.14 1550
a} Befier noic 34 Tor ducs from relased parties
b) The Company's expasurs 1o credit and currency risks and joss alewaness relaled (o trade roocivables wre disclased in noto 15
* Net of advance fram ¢ustomers of INR. 105 33 (31 March 2024 - INR 35 0d)
3 iy w1l
As at 31 March 2025
: Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
Particula revem e O Py e e e e ] Tetal
n Usbilled © Lesy thin 6 months | 6 months - Lycar | |- 2 years 2 -3 vears More thun 3 vears
309 1212 3351 234 078 1.23 113.17
= - = - - 421 1.23
pit ) 4222 3.5 24 .78 5.4 11140
As ot 31 March 2024
Particy bitted Outstanding for following periods from the date of transuction
l bars b et e than & months | & months - | year | | -2 years 2-3vean More than 3 years o
i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered 20.53 55.12 2.60 17 082 045 BT
(u) Undisputed trade reccivables = crodin mpaired - - - 28 - 4.5 4.78
Tatal 2033 55.12 Lol A5 0.82 +.9% 8548

The company does ael have amy dispusied duey which are ooovablo a8 at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2029
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Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Alf amounts in Rupees Million, uniess otherwise stated)

11A  Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents

12

13

Balances with banks
- ON current accounts

Cash on hand

Current Ninancial assets - Others
{Unsecured, considered good)

Recoverable from government authorities

Other receivables

Security deposits #

Bank deposits {due to mature within 12 months from the reporting date)*

# includes interest accrued on security deposit of INR Nil (31 March 2024 - INR 0,54}
* including interest accrued on fixed deposits INR Nil {31 March 2024 - INR 0.11)

Other current assets
{Unsecured, considered good)

Staff advance

Advance to suppliers

Balance with statutory authorities
Prepaid expenses *

* includes current portion of non-current prepaid expenses amounting to INR 3.86 (31 March 2024 -

Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
14.20 4564
0.20 0.80
14.40 46.44
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
7.10 710
0.60 060
0.89 111
- 201t
3.59 28.92
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
0.16 003
31.53 231
6.81 987
21.92 925
60.42 28.46

[NR 0.01)
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14 Equity share capital

Awthorised share capiial
Equity shares of INR 10 each

Issued, swbscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of INR 10 each

a) Reconcllistion of the equity shares tanding at the begi

Equity shares

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: 1ssued during the year
Balance ar the end of the year

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions artached to equity shares

The Company has caly one class of equity shares having the par valne of INR 10 per share Each holder of equity share is entitled 1o one vore per share. The

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number Awmoumt Number Amount
13,00.00,000 1.300.00 13,00,00000 1,300.00
13,00,00,800 1.300.00 13,00,00,000 1.300,00
12,78,01,486 1,278.01 12,78,01,486 1,278 01
12,78,01,486 1.278.01 12,78.01,436 1,278.01
ing and at the end of reporting year
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number Amount Number Amount
12,7801 486 1,278 01 12,78.01 486 1,278
12,78,01,486 1,278.01 12,780,456 1,278.01

equity shares are entitled 10 receive dividend as and when

declared. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entiled 1o receive remaining assets of \he Company, after distribution of all prefs J The distrit will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shaccholders
c) Bhares held by holding or their subsidisries! associates
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Name of shareholder Nomber Amount Number Amounat
Equity shares
SAMHI Hotels Limited ¢ 12,78.01 486 1,278.01 12,78,01 486 1,278.01
d) Names of the shareholders holding more than 5% of class of shares
Name of shareholder Asat As at
Equity shares 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number % of shares Number % of shares
SAMHI Hotels Limited* 12,78,01,486 100% 12,78,01 486 100%
* Mr. Gyana Das bolds | equity share as a nominee sharcholder.
&) Mo shares have been allotted without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares or bought back during the period of five years diately p ing the bal Sheet dale
F) Refer note 16 for shares reserved in respect of Optional Convertible Redeemable Debentures {OCRDs)
&) Refer Note 34 for shares pledged by holding company in respect of borrowings
b} Details of shares held by promoters
Asx at 31 March 2025
Sno Promoter Name No‘. ol: shares atthe Change during the No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change duoring
beginning of the year vear end of the yenr the year
1 SAMHI Hotals Linwted (Holding company ) 12,78.01 436 - 12,76,0] 486 100 -
As al 31 March 2024
L7
S0 Promoter Name No: oI:sham atthe Change during the No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during
begimning of the year year end of the year the year
1 SAMHI Hoels Limited (Holding company) 12,7801 486 - 12,785,071 436 100 -
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15  Other equity

Securities premium
Retained earnings
Equity component of interest free [oans from Holding Company

a) Securities premium

Balance at the beginning of the year
Addtions made during the year
Balance at the end of the year

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1,048.85 1,048.85
(5,147.24) {5,257.19)
3.511.86 4,106.46
{586.53) (101.88)
As at As at

31 March 2025

1,048.85

31 March 2024

1,048.83

1,048.85

1,048.85

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act 2013,

b) Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year
Profit/(Loss) for the year

Transterred from other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated profits/(losses) of the Company.

¢) Equity component of interest free loans frem Holding Company
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Modification of financial liability made during the year (refer note 16(d))
Add: Additions made during the year

Less: Repayments made during the year

{5,257.19) (4.925.78)
110.17 (331.18)
(0.22) (0.23)
(5,147.24) (5,257.1%)

4,106.46 315.25

- 1,520.90

- 2,715.01
(594.60} (444.70)
3,511.86 4,106.46

SAMHI Hotels Limited (Holding company) has granted loan in the year 2021-22, where loan is perpetual debt with nil rate of interest and option
to repay the loan is with the company. Accordingly the same is classified as equity. Also refer note 16(d).

d) Other comprehensive loss {net of tax)- Remeasurement of defined liability / asset

Balance at the beginning of the year

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (net of tax)
Transferred to retained ¢amings

Balance at the end of the year

{0.22)
0.22

(0.23)
023

This represents the remeasurements of defined benefit liability and comprises actuarial gains and losses.
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Fedsmprion

) The OCRD: e rutlvcrrable om ) Aped 2096

b Termcs of Pwdemption -
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Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN UsS101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to ihe financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amonnis in Rupees Million, unless athervise staved)

17 Nom-current provisions Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Provision for employee besciits
Graluity {refer note 27) 222 LBy
Compensated absances (refer note 27} 211 217
4.33 4.06
18 Other nos-curvent linbilities As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
U ised premium on optionally converible redeemable debentures (OCRDs) # 10834 11217
105.34 11917
# The difference between the fair value al inital recognition (the Iransaction price} and the valoe thal would have been derived had valuation techniques been applied at mitial recognition,
less subgequent releases, is as follows:
Unamortized balance as ar the beginning of the year 13000 140.83
Amonisabion recognised i the Staternent of Profit and Loss (1080 (10.83)
Unamortised balance as 21 the end of the year 119.17 130.00
Nom-current portion 108.34 11907
Current portion 10.83 10.83
19 Currenl imancial lisbilities - Borrowings As al As a1
31 March 202% 31 March 2024
Loan from holding company {unsecured ¥ 3000 -
Cash credil and averdrait Facilities From bank (secured) * &7 35 -
Curmrent malurities of long-term bomowings (refer note 16) 3143 12,75
128.75 12,75
*Includes interest d ing to TNR. 0.42 {31 March 2024 - INR Nilj
# Interest free boan, repayable on demand
Cash credit and overdralt facilities from bank
Particulars Sanctioned Interest rate ch r annum Repayment Security details
Amouni 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 Terms
ICICT Bank Limited 150.00 Repo rate + spread| Repo rate + spread |Repayable on [This working capital limit is secured by
of 2.75% i.e of 2T 1.2 940% |demand way of:
9.40% (1) Exclusive charge by way off
Hypoth on all ble fixed
fassets of Ascent Hotels Private Limited
both present and future.
(i) Morigage of immovable properties
Le. Hyatt Regency Pune owned by
Ascent Hotels Private Limited.
(1) Exclusive charge by way of]
hypothecation on the current assets 01
Ascent Hotels Private Limited including
but not limited 1o book debts and
receivables
(iv) Corporate guarantee provided by
SAMHI  Hotels  Limited (Holding|
Company), I
20 Current (inancial linbilities - Trade payables Asal As at
3t March 2025 31 March 2024
Trade payables
- total guistanding duss of micro enlerprises and small enterprisas (MSME) 948 2825
- lolal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smail 96 37 32637
enterprises
103,85 354.62
a) Refer note 37 for disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 20064 (MSMED)
b) Refer note 34 for dues to related parties
c) The Company's &xposure to currency and liquidity risks related 1o trade payables is disclosed note 35
Trade payables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2025
: Accrued s fing lor Foll g periods romn the date of trensaction
Farticulas Exp Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 venrs =
() MSME - 935 a2 00l - 9.48
(i1) Others 2013 A3 0% 208 0w 1.12 9637
Towal 29,13 72,40 3.10 LA L] 1.0} 10%.85
As at 31 March 2024
. Accrued Ouistanding for following perigds from the date of transaction
Fartkalart E Less than La€arg] (™ T3gears 2-3 vears | More than 3 years Total
(1) MSME s SOOI U N o002 -
(11) Others 208 6 PG et o WKL 177
Total 208.61 [YAf7.28 A 1434 .77
m GUrogrant=g

The company does non have any disputed dues which are pavable as al 31 Mareh 2075 and 31 March 2004

+
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CIN U55101 MH2ZO005PTC 154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amovnys in Rupees Miflion, unless otherwise stafed)

21

Current financial liabilities - Qthers

Interest accrued but not due on bomowings (refer note 163
Employee related payables

Payable for capital assels

Security deposits received

Other current Liabilities

Advance from customers
Slatulory dues payable

U P on op Ily convertible redeemable debentures (OCRDs) (refer note [8)

Curreat provisions

Provisiom lor employee benedits
Gratuity {refer note 27)
Compensaled absences {refer note 27)

As at
31 March 2025

036
2318
20
0.87
33.94

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

029
1637
264
1.03
20,73

As at
31 March 2024

362
2102
10.83
66.47

As at
31 March 2024

1.27
.54
231



Ascent Hotels Private Limaited

CIN US5101MH200SPT 154475

Notes vo the linancial statememts for the year ended 31 March 2025
{4if amonnes in Rupees Million, wlzss oierwise siaied)

24 Revenue from operationy For the year ended For the year ended
3 March 2025 A1 March 2024
Sale of services
- Room revenue T4298 63731
- Food and beverage revenue 616,69 495,89
- Recreation and other services 4081 4776
1,400.48 1.184.96
Disaggregation of revenwe information For the year anded For the year enided
31 Marech 1025 31 March 2024
a} Revenwe based on services
-Revenus from services transferred to custormers ar a poinl of tme 1,400.48 1.184.56
-Revenue from services transferred to customers over Lime N
1,400.48 1,184.96
b) Revenue based on services
-C d price f from with 1,400 43 1,184 56
1400.48 1,184,96
Contraci Balanrces
The contract liabilities primarily reiate to the ad: id ! from. for which 1s recognized when the performance obligation is over/ services delivered Advance collecton is
recognised when payment is received before the related performance ot ligatien is sanisfied. This includes advances i from the towards f hang R is d once the
performance obligation is met e on coom sty sale of food and b ge / provision of banquet services.
Excess of revenue over invoicing is recorded as unbilled revenue
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 3 March 2024
Contract liabilities
- Advance from customers 3197 3452
The ameunt of revenue of INR 31.66 (31 March 2024 INR 19.45) recogaised i the reporting period was included in ad from balance a1 the beginning of the period
Contract assets
Trade receivables 106.14 7580
Notes:-
1. Considering the nature of business of the Company, the above wade receivables are converted into cash within the same opemong cycle
2 R ised in the of Profitand Loss is same as the conmacied price
25 Other income For the year emded For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 1024
Inierest income from financial assets atamoctised cost
- on bank depasits 4 56 8l
- 00 security deposits al3 027
Liabilities/p ne longer required written back T4 162
Renma! income 1.20 172
Lnigrest on income tax refund 1.08 086
14.91 7.8
26  Cost of nnaterials consmmed For the year ended For the year anded
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Conswmption of food and beverages
Inventory at the baginning of the year 1092 #12
Add; purchases during the year 166 56 141.11
Tnventory at the end of the year {1332} (1052}
J64.10 =I39-“
27 Employee benelits expense For the year ended For 1be year ended
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 14213 121.29
Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer ‘2" below) .61 331
Compensated absences (refer ' below) 184 237
Staff welfare expenses 2349 1938
17707 151.55

a. Defined Coatribution plans

The Company's employess provident fund scheme and employee state msurance scheme are defined contribution plans A sum of IMR 9 6] {3 | March 2024

t the schemes and shown under Empioyee benefils expense i profit or loss Alse refer nole 32

b. Compensaied absences - other long term empboyee benefits
The Principal used m d g the obli are as given below

Particulars

Dscovnting rate
Salary growth rate

Q.
(%)
M

+

& Co

S -
urugram| =y
£z

For ihe year ended
31 March 2025
*

649
5350

- INR & 51) hag been recopmized as an expense in relation

For the year ended
31 March 2024
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Notes to the finamcial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amoums in Rupees Milfion, wmiess otherwise stated)}

¢ Defived Benefit Plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratity plan. Every employse who has completed five years or more of service gess a pratuity on departure at |5 days salacy (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service,
or part thereof in excess of § months The scheme is not funded

These plans typically expose the Company to acruarial risks such as: imvestment risk, inherent inlsrest mte sk , longevity risk and salary risk

Investment risk
The present value of the defined benefnt plan liability (denominated in [ndian Rupes) is calculared usiog a discount rate witich is delermined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on

government bonds
Imteresy rate risk
The defined benefit obligau Jeulated uses a di 314 based on government bonds. IF bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase
Longeviry rish
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caloutated by refe 10 the best esti of the lity of plan paniicip both during and after their employment An increase in the life expectancy of
the plan participants will increase the plan's
Tiability
Salary risk
Righer than expecied i in salary will i the defined benelil obligation
The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in profit or loss and gnised in the Bal Sheet for the said plam:
a) Expense recognised in Profit or Loss

For the year emded For the year ended
Particulars 3 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Currenl service cost 057 Q.50
Trierest cost 023 018
Total exp ised im the § of profir and loss 030 0.63
b) Remeaswremments recogmized directly in other comprehensive income

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulary 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
- changes in financial i ; .
- changes in experience adjustments 022 023
Amoumt enized im other prelensive ncome 023 0.23
¢} Chamge in present value of benefit oMigation

For the year ended For the year eaded
Particulary 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present valus of cbligation as al the beginning of the year 316 80
Current service cost 057 0.50
Interest cost ¢23 LA T
Actuarial (gain}loss 022 023
Bienefits paid {0.66) (0.35)
Present value of oblipation &s at the end of the year 3.8 316
d) A 3 10 be recopnized im Balance sheat

As ot A at

Particulary 31 Mareh H25 31 March 2024
Present valug of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 352 316
Wet liabdlity recogaized in the Balance Sheet 3,52 316
Mon-current 222 139

Current 1.30 1.27




Ascent Hoely Private Limited
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Notes 1o the financiad statements for ibe year ended 31 March 2025
i} amonnrs in Rupees Million, wfess atherise stared)

&) The Principal p used ind ining the granity benefln obligation are as givem below
As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
% %
Discounting rate 643 15
Salary growth rate 550 £.00

The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on Gevernment bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the liabilities

The salary prowth mte i2kes account of inflation, seniorily, promotion and other rievant factors on long lerm basis

As ar Al at
Demegraphic assamptions 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Retirement Age {years) 53 58
Manality Table 10024 of [ALM 100% of LALM
(2012-2014) (2012-2014)
Withdrawzl Rate " %
Ages
Up o 3G years 52 32
From 31 ro 44 years 52 52
Above 44 years 52 32
() The Company's best &5t of exp for the next year is [MR 0,78 {31 March 2024; [NR 0.65)
iid. Sensinivity amalysis
R bly ible changes at the reporting date to ane of the relevant achiznal assumptions, holding other
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Increase * Decrease * Tnerease * Detrease *
Discount rate (0 5% movement) (0.03) el ] (0.03) 0a3
Future salary growth (0 5% movement} 003 (003 003 (0.03)
Alibough the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash Aows expecied under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitvity of the assumptions shown
* Pasitive amount rep i in provisi
* Negative amount rep d inp
Semsitvity due to withd | and lity are not ial

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation | .37 years (31 March 2024: | 3% years)

£} Mavarity profile of defmied bemefit obligation

31 March 2028
010 1 year 13¢
1o 2 year 091
2o 3 year 052
3 to 4 year 026
4105 year 013
510 6 year 006
6 year powards 034
3.52
31 March 2024
Qe 1 ysar 1.27
110 2 year 033
203 year 0.43
¥ to 4 year 022
4105 year on
510 6 year 0.05
& year onwards 025
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{4l amounts i Rupees Miflion, unfess otherwise siated}

18 Finance costs For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest expense on financial liabilities camied at amortised cost
- Loans from banks and financial institutions 157.78 35162
- Optionally convertible redeemable debentures (OCRDY (refer note 16,18 and 22)* 41.70 1552
- Loan from holding company - 6231
Interest expense on delay in deposit of statulory dues 2.80 5.09
Other finance cost 290 14,90
205.18 449.94
* net of amortisation of premium on OCRDs amounting to INR. 10.83 (31 March 2024 - INR 10.83)
29 Depreciation and amortisation expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Drepreciation on property, plant and equipment 175.06 175.11
Amortisation of intangible assets 027 0.27
175.33 175.38
30 Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Repair and maintenance
- Building 1301 12.07
- Machinery 17.33 12.17
- Others 723 6.99
Advertisement and business promotion 3198 39.86
Commission 4513 3537
Communication 23.63 2241
Consumption of stores and supplies 49.85 4370
Contraciual labour 61.39 5893
General administration expenses 1.54 1.45
Insurance 445 490
Legal and professional charges (refer note 38) 57.40 124 64
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 133 3
Management and incentive fees 61.50 50,39
Payment to auditors (refer below)* 225 2,58
Power, fuel and water 144 28 [30,53
Loss allowance for trade receivables £.58 -
Rates and taxes 38.36 38.78
Rent (refer note 39) 0.06 0.06
Traveiling & conveyance 931 1143
Miscellaneous expenses 538 7.7
583.49 607.24
*Payment to anditors
As auditors
Statutory audii 2.00 2.10
Other services 0.05 016
Reimbursement of expenses 020 0.38
225 2.58

31 Eamings/{Loss) per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/loss for the year atmibutable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vea
Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profitloss for the year attributable fo the equity holders by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear plus
the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Net profit/loss attributable 10 equity shareholders 11017 (33118}
Weighted average aumber of equity shares for calculation of basic EPS 12,78,01 486 12,78,01 486
Weighted average number of equity shares for caleulation of diluted EPS 12,73,01 486 12,7801 486
Nominal value of equity share {INR) 10 10
Basic earning/ loss) per share (INR} 036 {259
Diluted earning/{loss) per share (INR)* 086 (259)

* The outstanding potenlial equity shares have an anti-dilutive effect on EPS Hence, the same have not been considered for caleulation of diluted eamings per share

7 o
/2 Gurugram) g
_f_f.

4
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Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise siated)

32

33

Contingent liabilities and commitments

(1o the extent not provided for) As at As at

31 March 2028 3 March 2024
Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 7.53 .

and others, and not provided for

Contingent liabillties

[n February 2019, Supreme Court of India in its judgement clarified the applicability of allowances that should be considered 1o obligations under The Employees’ Provident
Funds And Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, The Company has been legaily advised that there are interpretative challenges on the application of judgement retrospectively and as
such does not consider there is any probable obligations for past periods. For the period [ March 2019 to 31 March 2019, the Group has made a provision for provident fund contribution
in the books of accounts amounting to INR 0,31,

Ovperating Segments

The Holding Company®s Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM"), since be is responsible for all major decisions w.r.t. the
preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, alliance, merger, acquisition and expansicn of any new facility. CODM has examined the Company's
performance from product and geographic perspective and has identified a single business segment i.e "Developing and running of hotels”, hence no specific disclosures have been
made.

A. Information about products and services
The Company primarily deals in one business namely "Developing and running of hotels”, therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicabie.

B. Information about geopraphical aress
The Company provides services to customers in [ndia. Further, there are no non-current assets located outside India

C. Information about major customers (from external customers)
The Company does not derive revenue from one customer which would amount to 10 per cent or more of the entity’s revenue,
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Nodes to the finamcial statemenis (or he year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amonnts in Rupees Million, unless orhervise stated)

34 Related party discloswres

a) Related party and oatmre of related party relationshlp where controd exists:
Description of relationship Name of the Party

HoWding Company SAMHI Hotets Limited

b} Other retated partics with whom transactions bave been taken place:

Description of relatioaship MName of the Party

Fellow subsidiary Barque Hotzls Privaie Limited

SAMH] Hotels (Gurgaon} Private Limited

c} Transactioas during the current year/ pravious year

Particulars

Holding C

o —

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

L
F1 March 2024

Interest on boaa from Holdime Company

SAMHI Hotels Limited

&2 81

Carrent borrowimgs- loass from Holding Comg ed)

S AMHI Hotels Limited

- Loan received

F0.00

433 50

- Loan repaid

40 00

Non-current ¥ iad liabilities - B

SAMHI Hokels Limited

-Modification of financial liability made during the vear {refer note 16{d))

1.520.90

Equity component of imterest firee loans from Holing £

SAMHI Hawels limited

- Loan received

21501

- Loan repaid

59460

444 70

Reimbursement of ¢xpemses
’SAMH[ Hotels {Gi Private Limited

239

|Barque Hotels Private Limited

005

BAMH] Hotels himited

Lip

Other expenses

Legal snd professional feea

SAMHI Hotels Limited

4915

117.99

Capital work-in-progress

SAMHI Hotels Limited

B62

d} Year end balances

Particulars

Holding Company

Fellow subsidiary

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

31 March 2025

31 March 1914

Other equi

Equity component of interest free loans from Holding Company

SAMHI Hotels Limited

3,511.36

4,106 46

Carrent borrowings- boans from Holding Company (unsecured)

SAMHI Hotels Limited

30 00

Trade receivables

SAMHI Hotels (Gurgaon} Private Limited

057

066

Barque Holels Private Limired

0.03

Trade payables

SAMHI Hotels Limured

16524

Current ial liabilities - Others

Payabde lfor capital assets

SAMHI Hotels Limited

3 54

In addition 1o rensactions above,

- the Holing Company has provided underahing o bebalf of the Company in respect of 1erm loan obiamed fram banks irefer nate 16)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024, the company has nol recorded any impairment of recervables relating o amounts owned by related parties

This 13 undertaken at #ach reporting, perod
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3 March 2025
LAl amonnts tn Rupees Miffion, undess otherwise siaved)

35 Financisl instruments - Fair vatues and risk mamagement

A) Financinl mstrumenis by category and fair value

The belaw 1able the judgy and esti made in d the Bir vahes of the financial i that are (a) recognised and d at fair vakoe and (b) measured al amoniced eost and for
which fair values are disclosed in the financial statemenis. To provide an mdication about the refiabiiity of the inputs wsed in determining fair value, the Company has classified ils financial mstruments into the thre
kvels prescribed under the acceunting standard

31 March 2025
Level of hierarchy |Fair Value Through Prof 1inr ¥alue Through Other Amortied Cost
Pani; and Loss (F¥TPL) Comprehessive Income
(F¥TOLC)
Financial assets
Other non-curment financial asscis - - - 1247
Trade reccivables - - - 106, 14
Cach and cash cquivalents - = = 14 40
Qher current financial assets - - - 339
Total Mmancial asyets - - 201,60
Financial liabdites
Non-currcat Borrow mgs 3 - - 183663
Current bomowings 2 - 12378
Trade pavables - - - 105 85
Other current Ainancial Eabilioes - - - 3504
Total fi ial linbilities - - 111510
H March 2024
Level of hierarchy |Fair Value Through Profd [Faic Value Throwgh Other Amortised Cost
Particulars and Losz (FVTPL) Comprehensive Income
(FYTOCT)
Finamcial assets
Other non-current financial asscts - - 7756
Trade reccivahles - - - 7580
Cash and cash cquivalents . - - 46.44
Other curment financisl assols - - - 892
Total financial sssets - - nan
[Finuancial liabilities
Non-curmeal Bormowings 3 - - 1.363 23
Current bomowings F] - - 12,15
Trade - - - 35467
Other current financial liabilites - - - 2073
 Total Minancial liabiliies - 1.75133
A) Financial instressents by catepory and Eair value
Flaamtisl assets and Kabililies measured at (air value - ing fair value
Asat Az 1t
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Fmgncial linbilities
Optionall; ible medeemable deb {OCRD) (Level 3) 163 59 LG

The fair value of trade reccivables, unbilled revemuc, cash and cash equivalonts, bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents. other curmnt firancial assets, current bamowmgs. rade pavables and other curcnl
financial liabilives approximate thewr camying amounts. dus 1o their shor-lerm nature

Interest mates on non-gurrent bomowings (From bank and Rnanck! instimtions) are equivaknt 1o te market rat:. Such homrewings are contracted o floaring s and robes are react at short inervals. Accordingly, the
carrying value of such borrewings approximates Rir valuc
Fair valuc of bank deposits included in non-cument cther financial assets inchaded in non-current boang ans cquivalent to their carmving amount. 25 the interest rie on them is equivalent 1o market rane

B} Measurement of fair valoes
Fair values are categoriscd into differoat levels in a fair value Mcrarchy based on the inputs used in the vahsation wehmgues, There has been no wansfer berscen Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the sear ended 31
March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Valuation technique ased (o determine [air value
Speaitic vakuation kchaique uscd to vabue financial instruments wclude;

- fair value of optionaily bic deb (OCRDY 15 d bascd on monie carlo method of valuabon of the instrumen
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C) Dedails of significant unobservable inputs

Sigmificant umsbservable mputs Inter-relpdionseip between significast enobservable inputs and fair value
Agat Ay at [Remarks
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024

Opuionally conventible redecmable debenturcs (OCRD) {unseeured)

Business Value 237132 1,626 63[The cstimated far value would memase (decrease) if the busmess value was
higher {kowzr)

sk Free e 6.78% F23%[The estomared fair valie woold inoreaese (decrease) if e risk free rate was
higher {lower)

Volatkity raw 39 30% 59.00%| The estimated fair value would increase (deerease) I the volatility rate was
[higher (lower)

D Financial risk management

Risk mamagement fremework

The Company’s activitics expose & W a varioty of finaneial risks: markey risk (including foreign exchange risk and inigrest e sk, credil sk and liquidity risk

The Holding Company's chief’ financial officer under the directions of the board of dirciors implements fancial risk managsment policies across the Company. The Company's risk managemont policics are established to idenufy and

analvse the risks faced by the Company, 1 sct approprate risk Limits and comrmls, ko monitor nsks and adhercncs te limits in order 1o minimize the fancial i mpact of such risks. The risk management policies and systems an evicwed
regularly to reflect changes i marker conditions and the Compan: ‘s activites.

i Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial less to the Company 1fa customer of counkerparty t a financial instrument Bils o meet its contraenual obligations. The carmving amouwnt of financial assets rep the maxi credil risk exp The
Company has credie policics in place and the exposures 1 thess oredit risks are monitared on an gagoing basis

The Company’s palicy is to place cash and cash equivabents and other bank balances with banks and fnancial institution counterpartics with good credin rting

Tho Company has given sccurity doposits to various statutory suthoritics and to vendars Bt seeuring services from them and rental dopesits for emplogee accommodations. Furiher, the. Company hars other receivablc bakinces outstanding
a at wear end from vendors against cost reznbursemant. The Company docs not cxpect any dofault From those parties and acooedmghy the risk of dofauk i negligible or nil

hmsputufwdllcxpmumﬁunn'adcmcuvd:lus.ﬂm Companyhasestﬁllshedaﬂcdllmllcvundcrwhwhmhmw © analyscd individually for creditworthiness bofare enfening into contract. Credit limits are established for
cach d regularly and any sales dings those himits require approval from the approp
'I'MC«npauv bliches an all For impat thar reg its oxpected crodi Jastes i 1gspect of trade Teceivables, The management uses a simplificd approach for the purpese of eomputation of expetted credil loss for cade

credik rish, are Ci d ding 1o their credit charactenistics, inaluding whother they arc an individual or legal eniily. their geographical location. industry and existenes of prvious

n
financial dificuitics, if' amy
There am no significant coneenirarions of credit risk within the Company
The Group considers a financial asset to be in dofiult when:

* th debter is untiksty 0 pay ils credit obligalions to the Grou i full; or
+ the: finameial assct is more than two years past duc

The provision matrix used for o iming boss alk on trade ivables as at 31 March 2025 s 0-180 days: 3 30% (3] March 2024; 3.27%), 180-365 days: 19.29% (31 March 2024. 31.31%.) 366-547 days: 543% (31 March
Hdd: 56 25%), 548-729 days: §0 22% (3I March 2024: B0 38%), »= 730 days: 100% (31 March 2024; 100%%)

Recomcilistion of boss allowance

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2004
Trade receivables
Opening balance 968 1023
Changes in loas allowangs 135 i0.55)
Closing bslance 11.26 9.68

The impaimment provisions for financial asscts disclsed above arc bascd on assumptions about risk of defalt and cxpected loss rates. The company uses judpemet in making thse assomptions and selecting the puts fo the imparment
calulation, based on the Company s past history. cisting marker conditions as well 2s Forward booking cenimates ay the ¢nd oF cach Teporting paried

i, Liguidicy risk

Liquidity nsk is the risk tha the Company will encounter difficulty in mecting, the obligations aseociaed with its fnancial liabilitics that aro scied by delivering cash of another fnancial asser The Compary™s approach 0 managing
Tiquidiiy is to eosure. a5 far as possible. that it will have suificient liquidiey to moct its liabilities when they are due, undze both aomial and stressed conditians. without incuri ble losses or nisking damage to Company’'s
repulation

L itors miling f orllmCompm\slnquu:lmposmonmdmhandwhcqwalcnlsonmcbwsorcxpwndcashl‘iowsmcmmuhas ficient cash to mect oporational needs. Such & ing kes into
consideraton the Company ‘s debt g plans. dL g Bacilibes and covenant compliande

Uhimate respansibiliny for liquidiny risk management rests with the boand of directors. which has cstablished an appropriatc lquidice risk framevodk for the maragemont of the Campany s shon-tem. medium term and long-

wern fmding and liquide: management requirements. Rofer note 41 which covers liquidity risk management of the Company
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Motes to the fmontial statememts for the year ended I1 March 2825
(4! amounrs in Rupaes Million. wnless otharwise siated)

(n) Exposure to Romidity risk
The following are the i | of Bnancial Tabiktics at the meporting date. The amounts are grass and undissounted;
Contractunl cach fows

31 March 2025 Carrying ssmount Total 01 year 1-1 years 2-5ytars  More than 5 years
Non - derlvative Gnancisl liabilites
Nem-current borrowings 1,856 43 156672 - 4338 3592 1,300.92
Curment bormowings 12878 12878 123.78 . - -
Trade payables 105 85 10585 105 85 E - -
Other ciment financial labilies 33 3364 33 + = =

2.115.20 2,138.29 263.57 43.88 31592 1.509.92

Contractual cash Mows

H March 2024 Carrying amoum Total -1 year 1-2 years 25 yeary More than 5 years
Non-derivative financial Kabiliies
Hon-current bormowings 136323 1406.17 - 229 165 30 121741
Current bormowings 1275 1275 12,73 = = -
Teade paryables 15462 354.62 354.62 . -
Other cument fnancial liabilides 0.7 20.73 0.r 2 = e

1,751.33 1.794.27 5810 1296 165.80 1,217.41
{b) Financing arrangements
The company had access to the Rllow ing undrawn borrowing facilities at the ead of the reporting periad:

31 Mardh 2025 31 March 2024
Floatiag rate
Expiring beyond one ytar (term boan from banks) 31483 59464
Overdraft Facility 8263 13000
597.50 104464

i, Market ik
Market risk is the risk that the changes in market pricos such as famign exchange rates and inferest ries, that will affoet the Company's expense or the value of ity holings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is bo manage and sontrol market risk cxp within aceep p , while optimismg the cwm
Currency risk

Cumrency risk forthe Company is the risk that the Ruture cash outflows on aceount of paables for managemant fics and other expenditure will Ructuate because of changes in forcign exchange rates. The Company is exposed W the cifeets
The M.

of fluctution in the prevailing foneign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. Exposure ariscs primanly due to cxchange rate Sucnoations berween the fi
arising from forcign currency transactions on periodic basis and follows appropnate risk management policics.

Juates forcign exchange rate exp
Exposure to currency risk
The: Cemp T W forcign rigk ar the end of the reporting period are 2s Follows:;
31 Mareh M28

Financial liabifities
Trade payahles

31 March 2024

Fimaneial liabslities
Trade pavables

Currency

usp

Currency

usp

i) v and other i

Amoamt i Toreign Amoent in INR
currency {s millioas) (in millipns)
034 28 86

Amownt in foreign Ampunt in INR
tarrency (m millions) {im miltions)

043 357
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Mates to the financial statemends for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amonrs m Rupees Mithion, wiless otherwise staved)

Sensitivity analysis
A bly possibk: b (weakening) of the (ndian Rupec againet Eoecign currency at year end would havs affected the oF financial i h inated in Foreign v and afkcted equity and prodit or
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis that all oty variables, in particular inwrest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forscast sakes and purchases
(Profit) f s Equity, net of tax
Effect in INR Strengthening Wieakeni Strengtheni Wcaltmuﬁ
31 March 2025
USD { 1% movement) 029 {0.29) 029 10.29)
0.29 (0.29) .20 (0.29)
(Profd) floss Equity, net of tax
Effect im INR Saengicning Weakeni Strengthening Weakening
31 March 2024
USD i 1% mavement) 0.36 10.36) 036 10.36)
0.36 {0.36) 036 (0.36)
Interest rate risk

Tnlorest rate risk b the risk that the Bxir valus or future cash flows of a financial instument will fuctuste because of changes in marker interest rates. The Company’s ¢xposune b the nisk of changes in market interest ciey relaikes primarthy
W the Company s bormowings obliganions with foating interest ratcs.

Mmpmcvduausuwhmmslmsinthcmir.lnmmnlarhasis»axplmcﬂv:optbno(mfnandlgofd»bmvhgsofﬂmCompmyMomu,majoril_vod’lhcl" pany’s b ings arc primarily linked 1o Noating inerest rates,
thercby resulong in the adjusmicnts of ils bomowing eos1s in hinc with the market interest

Exposurt to isterest rate risk
The imgrest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing, financial mstrumonts is as follows:

Nominal amount

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Fixed-rate instruments
Financial assets - Bank deposits 3368 3209
2468 a24me
Variable-rate instruments
Fingacial liabilivcs - Term loans feom bunks I,72533 1,265 21
Totad 1,781.01 1.347.30

Fair vabue seusitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company does not accon! for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial lsbilies at fair value through proéit or loss. Thorefor, a change in inicrest raes a1 the wporting dakc would not affect profit or loss. Alss mfbr note 36A for fair
walue disclosure

Cash Mow Sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruaments

Aruasunablypossiblcdnngcoflﬂﬂbasispomlsininmmstmnwmpomugdmwwldhwchmw[dmcased)eqn’t_vmdpmﬁtorlossbyﬂnamonmslmnbelow Thig analysis assumes tha all cther variables, remain congtant.

(Profit) / loss Equity, net of tax

100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp i 100 bp decrease

31 March 2025
Financial liabilives 16.66 {16.66) 16,66 (16.66)
16.66 (16.66) 16,66 {16.66)

31 March 2024
Froaneial liabilites 774 {27.74) 2774 {27.74)
27.74 {27.74) 27.74 {27.74)

36 Capital Mansgemest

The Company’s policy is b0 maintain a strong capital base £0.25 to maisiaim ovestor. crodibor and marker confidonee and o sustan Binre development of the busincss.
The Board of dircctors of the Holding campany secks to maintain 2 balance between the higher retums that might be pessibl with higher lovels of borrowing and the advantases ad sccurity afforded by a sound capital position

The Company menitors capital using boan ko value (LTV) method to cresur thar the koan to vakic does oot incease beyond 65% on any given reporting date ar Company lovel. The compans 15 in the process of complyving with the said
The Company is not sobicct 1o exmemally imposed capital requirements

Asapan of its capilal management policy, dv: Company did aet have any defauls in the repavment of loans and intorest. Theee have beer, o loan covenant defauks
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Notes o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amovmis in Rupees Miflion, unless otherwise stated)

37

39

Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {(MSMED)

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Dues to micro and small suppliers
The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and smal? supplicrs as at the end of the year:

Pringipal 9.48 2825
Interest 0.04 032
The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during each accounting year. 90.49 69.96
The amount of interest paid under the act beyond the appointed day during the year - 1.32
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 348 164
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006, : '

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 489 237

The amount of further interast remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest - -

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as
defined under Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED), Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payabie to such enterprises As at 31
March 2025 and 31 March 2024 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company.

During the year SAMHI Hotels Limited (the Holding Company) has allocaled expenses amounting INR 57.77 {31 March 2024 - INR 117.99) for core business advisory,
procurement and other suppoert services. Out of the total allocation INR 49.15 (31 March 2024 - INR 117.99) has been booked 2¢ legal and professional expense under the head
‘other expenses’ and INR 8.62 (31 March 2024 - Nil) has been capitalised onder Capital work-in-prograss

Lease disclosures

The Company has taken office premises under cancellable operating lease agreement. The total lease rental recognised as an expense relating 1o low value and short term leases
amounts to INR 0.06 {31 March 2024 - INR 0.06)

Recent issued accounting proneuncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) natifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issved from time
to time. On 7th May 2025, MCA issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2025, which made certain amendments to Ind AS 21 The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, effective from 1 April 2025. These amendments define currency exchangeability and include guidance on estimating spot exchange rates
when a currency is not exchangeabte. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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Nates 1o Uve Tnsncial statemenis for the veur ended 31 March 2025

{1} amounts 1 Rupees Mithon, imiess otherwise sited)

41 Ratio Analysls and its clements

A3

43

Ratio I limmas/% MNurerator Thenoan Inator 31 March 2028 31 March 2024 % thangs in ratio Renson far variance
Coral U0 hos woeesed due 1o
Curenl Rtio I mes Tota! Cument Assels Tota) Cument Ligiulitics 0358 o482 9% decroase in trado povables and inoease)
i trwde rocervables
Debt-cquaty miio has increased due [
Deba-Equiry Ratio Tn umes Total Bomrowings Tota! Equuty 287 11?7 145% incrase in bomawings ed dereas: )
1otal oquiry
De Servmed  covomge muo  has)
Hamings before finamee cost, [Finance conts puid + Poocipal) increascd die Lo roduction of prncipal
Db Survicr Covamge Rotio In s h is i = af Tong  term) 212 07 BTN rpmmal oW naase 0 profits
and ta barrunings during ihe vear
Trade Roguivabthes Inmover raf In times |Revene {rom opsrstions Average Trade Reccivables 1539 1542 st
e i frode poables  wmover ralio hos
Trade pasables wmover muo In timess «ou o Rlinih e Aerage Trads: Povohlas 125 238 6% increasad die 1o reduction in averagel
Orther exparises trade paynblea
Mt proill RLio has improved due w ihe|
fact thot compeny hos camed profils in
Nl profd ralw Tn% [Profiv {loss) aflor ax. Focvenu: from opematcmns T BT 27 93% -128% ooyl year a5 compared Lo losses in
[APeVRRUS Yo
Retum  on Copital  eploved  has]
Farmings before intenest and  (Capatol Emplovned - Tungblc < pmproved due 1o incrcase i camings
Retun on Capwel emploed In* — Ner Worth + Totat Hormusing 1078% Her . before it sl e duting e
[curment Vear:

The Company baz nol presemted the lollowing mtios due b the reasons given below

(1) Invendeey twrmorer rutio Sinoc the: Company hobds e anvaniany of bevenges ncluding liquor and the proponion of sush mvemory value is insigmifiean 1o wolol mosts

¥} Ratwrm on invesiments Sonce the Compeny myvists surplus Lnporary Tuds in shan-wem bonk deposins and te o d Lol is be kkal Pevene

) Raturn on equity eatie The Company has incurred met bozs (0 previous year and ako hos negalive averngs mtequity. Thenefore, “Rocl i o cquity™ raie canme Ix.manlnpul]v oompuln:d and b e not boon discheed i the financial siements

H} Net cupital termovor rado The Company's average working copital is megativ e durng e currend voor as well 38 provious wear Thereltme, “MNa working hrmova” fully rpuled and e hote o beon disclosed i b financil
slalerreils

{Hher stameary indarmaiion

(i) The Company dods nol bave any Fename property, whee any procosding hos been imminked or pemding aganet te Company for holding any Brerami progery
) The Company docs nos have ony iranseclions mih companke strack off under scction 248 of Componies Act 2013
) The Company dowt nol have any changes or satisfciion which is ¥ 10 be regralered sath Registrar of Comp
(iv} The Compeny have not aded or invested it Cryple cumancy of Vinual Cumcncy durmg the fnoncial year.

(v} No funds have bean sdvaneed or boawal of investod (aher Trem bomrowed funds or share premium or any olher sources of kind of funds) by the Company Lo or m any ol parsoafs} or etin(ies), ncluding forsign «anlies (“temdianes™) wath tha
undarzlonding, whetha recerded m wiiing or otherwise, thet the ntarmediary shall kand or invest in party ’anlified by of on behall of the Company {Ulirmats Banclicianes)

ivi) The Company has not Teoeyvod any fund from any partyis) (Funding Party) with the undamianding el the Company shall whther, dirsctly or indmectly lend or invest 1 othur parsons or awities identified by or oo behnlf of the Company Ulumete
Beneficianies™ or provide any guaronios, secunty of the like on behall of the Uhimate Boneliciaries
(\ii)mCmmyhﬂmmmmmymmuﬂmMﬁﬁisnmmhIlwbwlfsOl'lmmll|n1.|l|sMmﬂm“ﬁMMmmmWhmmmmmhmTum.196I fruch ma, search or survey o
any other relevam provisicns of the bvoome Tax Act, 1561

(i) The titla deerts of immovgble propety distlosed 1o ibe fnancial statemants are beld in the name of e Company

(ix} The Company has nod granied any loans or advances in te nalwre of loans K promobas, dircolors, KMPs and Uhe relalod parties (s defined under Companics Act, 2013) et severliy of jointly with any other parson thd ere repaysbhe on dernand or
withoul specifying any kams or paiod of repaymant

() The Company hes oot bean declarad a willul defolier by any bank or other lander {a= defined under te Companies Ad, 2013), 10 |
{xi) The Compamy has nsed the bomowings rom batks for the speciic purpese [or which o was taken

(i) There has been no revalustivn of proparty, plant and equipmet of inungble asscts or both for the year mded 31 March 2025 ond 31 bMarch 2024

(xian) The compamy has bomongs from banks on. e basis of secunity of cummt assests Howevey, the Company 13 10l required 10 submit quarierdy returns or stalements with banks dunng Le curren vear.
{x¢iv) The campany has cemplicd with the nnmber of Tayers prescribod under te Companics Acl, 2013

{4} The company bkt o entered mio any sch . which has an g Enpact on CUTeNl oF prorious inancial vears

{ROC) bewond [ perivd

wilh the gusdeines oo milfl d

Sabasquent events

#) SAMHI Hosels Limiled ("the hoding Company™) vide its share-hotder morting deted 20 May 2025 approved prmary i and
Lhe: cquiry shane capital {on 8 Fully-diluled basis) of Ascant Flowls Privase Lintled, SAMIT IV Busma Heolels Privose Limiled ond Inomiar Towrtsm and Holcls Pnvete Limited Target C
‘has been asanbed st INFe 22,000 00 million

by On 14 Moy 2025, 6,726.304 ibile red ("OCRDs"} basied br the Companry to Vascon Engioesrs Limited have been converiod im0 oquivaknl rumber of oquiry shares Funther on 16 bay 20235, SARET Holels Lumiwcd (e
Liolding Company) hos acq«lui these eqluly sharcs to relan TO0% of Lwe share copiral in the Comipany

bacripli oleqm:ys]lambvkwnBﬂlﬂmwhmhmbd.mnmllmofGlCPlcLumld(lnmor}lohnld])%nl‘
") Th L value of oz Tarpet Companics.

e dekb

The rctes fromm Moty | 1o Mole 43 form an inkegral part of Lhese finongial salemenls
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